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Creatively Pursuing 

the Promise of Generic Drugs



“Patients fi rst” is the primary corporate philosophy of Sawai Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., and, since 

1965, that philosophy has guided us as a respected leader in the generics industry in Japan.

 The Japanese government has put forth the goal of raising the market share of generic drugs, by 

volume, from 17.2% in March 2008 to 30% by March 2013—the close of our FY2012. 

 To meet this challenge, Sawai is continuing to pioneer major innovation within the generic drug 

industry, while streamlining to raise our corporate value. 

 We perform our respective duties with a sense of mission and pride, while contributing to 

sustainable growth as the embodiment of Sawai’s corporate philosophy. 

Number-One in Japan’s Generics 
Industry by Putting Patients First

A Caution Concerning Forward-looking Statements

This annual report contains forward-looking statements regarding the Company’s plans, outlook, strategies and results for the future. All forward-looking statements are based on 
judgments derived from the information available to the Company at the time of publication.
 Certain risks and uncertainties could cause the Company’s actual results to differ materially from any projections presented in this report. These risks and uncertainties include, but 
are not limited to, the economic circumstances surrounding the Company’s businesses, competitive pressures, changes in related laws and regulations, status of product development 
programs, and changes in exchange rates.
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Sawai’s Mission

To enable people to live healthy 

lives through pharmaceutical 

products imbued with our 

whole-hearted dedication.

Corporate Philosophy 
(established January 2007)

Sawai’s Hope

To become an indispensable part 

of society through our desire 

to be of service.

To grow in tandem with society 

through innovation and coopera-

tion, while pursuing creativity.

Sawai’s Challenge
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 $ 538,155
  91,563
  53,547

 497,184
 873,130
  38,618
  57,717
  32,513

$ 3.41
 3.41
 0.75

30.28

Net sales
Operating income
Net income
Net assets
Total assets
Research and development (R&D) expenses
Capital expenditures
Depreciation and amortization

Ratio of R&D expenses to sales
Return on equity 
Shareholders’ equity to total assets

Amounts per common share: 

 Net income—basic
 Net income—diluted
 Cash dividends applicable to period
 Net assets

Years ended March 31

Millions of yen

 ¥  50,070
   8,519
   4,982
  46,258
  81,236
   3,593
   5,370
   3,025
 

 7.2
  11.8
 54.5

  
 317.32
 316.86
     70.00
 2,817.65

 ¥  37,631
 4,048
 1,739

40,205
66,295

3,222
6,568
2,575

8.6
4.6

58.3

¥  110.73
—

55.00
2,460.17

 ¥  44,284
 4,668
 2,439

41,706
72,320

3,409
2,841
2,709

7.7
6.2

55.4

¥ 155.32
—

55.00
2,551.06

%

200820092010

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2010

Yen U.S. dollars

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Note:  1.   The U.S. dollar amounts represent translation of Japanese yen amounts for convenience only and are at the approximate rate of ¥93.04 = $1.00; the rate prevailing on 
March 31, 2010.

 2.  Diluted net income per common share are not disclosed for 2008 and 2009 because although there were outstanding potential shares, such shares did not have 
a dilutive effect.

      3. Minority shareholders’ interests are included in net assets due to the application of the Japanese Corporate Law. 

 4.  For the year ended March 31, 2009, the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries adopted the new accounting standard for Measurement of Inventories (“ASBJ 
Statement No.9” issued on July 5, 2006).

 5.  For the year ended March 31, 2009, the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries adopted the new accounting standard for Lease Transactions (“ASBJ Statement 
No.13” issued on March 30, 2007), and the Guidance on Accounting Standard for Lease Transactions (“ASBJ Guidance No.16” issued on March 30, 2007).

Net sales (Millions of yen) Net income (Millions of yen) Net income per share (basic) (yen)

 2007 2008 2009 2010  2007 2008 2009 2010  2007 2008 2009 2010

34,317
37,631

44,284

50,070

2,260

1,739

2,439

4,982

157.67

110.73

155.32

317.32

Years ended March 31



Economic activity in Japan remained stagnant in fi scal 2009, the 

year ended March 31, 2010, although there were signs of recovery 

in some sectors as the government’s economic stimulus measures 

began to take effect. In the ethical drugs industry, the generic 

drugs market has been expanding gradually, mainly due to NHI 

pharmacies, since the implementation in April 2008 of measures 

to promote the use of generic drugs, including revision of the 

prescription form and the provision of additional medical service 

fees for the dispensing of generic drugs. Responding to the chang-

es, Japanese and foreign companies from a number of industries 

have entered the generics market.   

 In these circumstances, the Sawai Group implemented three 

key policies during the fi rst year of the medium-term business plan 

“M1 TRUST,” in keeping with our philosophy “Patients fi rst.” They 

were: “Reinforcement of marketing to DPC hospitals,” “End-to-end 

cost control,” and “Reinforcement of collaboration with wholesale 

distributors.” Important accomplishments in fi scal 2009 included 

introduction of the industry’s top new product lineup and the 

establishment of a robust supply system. As a result of these 

efforts, we achieved record high net sales and net income. 

 The future trend within the ethical drugs industry in Japan is 

expected to favor further dissemination of generics, due to the 

government’s promotion measures, which include higher medical 

service fees for dispensing generic drugs.   

 Japan’s generics industry stands on the threshold of an era of 

unprecedented mega competition brought on by market entry by 

Japanese and foreign originator drug manufacturers and companies 

from other industries, as well as by industry realignment through 

mergers and acquisitions. Sawai, as a specialty generics company, 

aims to prevail in the face of the anticipated intense competition 

by aspiring to top-level performance in quality, stable supply and 

information provision, while also developing unmatched brand 

value predicated on customer trust. To that end, in the second year 

of the medium-term business plan M1 TRUST we will steadily 

implement the measures set forth in the plan in group-wide efforts 

to achieve our business objectives.  

 In the years to come we will press ahead with activities to 

ensure that our business operations contribute to patient satisfac-

tion and welfare and increase corporate value for our shareholders 

and other stakeholders.
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

 Hiroyuki Sawai, Chairman   Mitsuo Sawai, President

Growing to Fill the Healthcare 
Needs of Society

Hiroyuki Sawai, Chairman

Mitsuo Sawai, President
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AN INTERVIEW WITH THE PRESIDENT

Q:  First, please discuss the fi scal 2009 business results and progress with the 

medium-term business plan M1 TRUST.  

In fi scal 2009, we achieved substantial sales and profi t growth. Net sales increased 13.1% to ¥50,070 

million; operating income rose 82.5% to ¥8,519 million and net income increased 104.3% to ¥4,982 

million. We posted record-high profi ts and achieved the numerical targets established for the fi rst year of 

the medium-term business plan. 

 I believe that this favorable business performance is the result of our group-wide efforts to achieve 

the management policies for fi scal 2009 in the medium-term business plan: “Steady and dependable 

release of major products,” “Improvement in marketing activities through reinforcement of marketing 

capabilities,” and “The rigorous practice of low-cost management.” 

 We have the industry’s number-one product line in Japan. We released 34 products in May 2009 and 

another 29 in November. Sales of these high value-added new products have steadily increased in the 

fi rst year, especially sales of orally disintegrating (OD) tablets. Major new products such as Halthrow OD 

tablets, a drug that improves urinary disturbances, and Amlodipine OD tablets, a hypertension and angina 

medication, contributed to business performance as anticipated. Also, as a result of vigorous marketing 

activities, adoption rates by medical institutions for products released since 2004 have increased steadily, 

especially medications for lifestyle diseases. As for profi ts, we were able to boost profi ts through group-

wide cost cutting activities that held down increases in the cost of sales and selling, general and adminis-

trative expenses. 

Mitsuo Sawai, President

Overview of Financial Results

FY2008 Full Year Result FY2009 Full Year Result Year on Year (Growth)

Millions of yen Sales (%) Millions of yen Sales (%) Millions of yen  (%)

Net Sales 44,284 100.0 50,070 100.0 5,786 13.1

Operating Income 4,668 10.5 8,519 17.0 3,851 82.5

Ordinary Income 4,479 10.1 8,407 16.8 3,928 87.7

Net Income 2,439 5.5 4,982 10.0 2,543 104.3
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Q:  Please discuss high-priority initiatives and the forecast for business results 

for fi scal 2010.  

First of all, in the management policies for fi scal 2010, the second year of the medium-term business 

plan, we seek to improve marketing activities through reinforcement of marketing capabilities. We will 

drive the rate that hospitals adopt our products and work to expand adoptions of oncology generics by 

reinforcing collaboration between dedicated hospital MRs and area MRs to further open up the hospital 

market. And, in our interactions with NHI pharmacies, we will seek to increase sales of high-priority 

products such as medications for lifestyle diseases.      

 Next, we will strive to both build trust in Sawai as a source of stable supply and lower our manufac-

turing costs. We will continue our industry-leading stable supply system and win customer trust in the 

Sawai Brand by reinforcing our ability for stable supply, even if faced with a sharp increase in demand, by 

maintaining high product quality, by implementing rigorous safety management and by improving GMP 

management. In addition, we will redouble our cost containment efforts to further reduce raw materials 

costs and fi xed costs.

Business Policy of 2010

Basic policy of medium-term business plan (09–11)

I. Sales growth far exceeding market growth rate

II.  Further strengthening of management structure by thorough cost control and effective strategic investment

III. Establish robust SAWAI brand

Business plan and its progress in FY2010

1. Improve “Quality of sales promotion” by strengthening the marketing function

 • Sales growth in hospital market and in the area of oncology GE drugs

 •  Further cultivation in NHI pharmacy market and sales increase of focused drugs 
(life style related disease drugs, etc.)

2. Build up “SAWAI’s Trust of its stable supply” and reduce costs of production

 • Strengthening the “stable supply capability” responding to sudden increase of demand

 • Reducing the cost of raw materials and fi xed expenses

3. Enhance development of value-added GE drugs meeting market needs

4. Establish infrastructure enabling Net Sales of ¥100 billion

 A third policy is to develop high value-added generic drugs that refl ect an understanding of market 

needs. In fi scal 2010, we will once again drive business results by assembling the best lineup of new prod-

ucts in the industry. As of May 2010, we have already launched 17 new dosage forms in 14 active ingredi-

ents. All of these new products are patient-friendly drugs, such as cetirizine hydrochloride OD tablets, an 

FY2009 Full Year Result FY2010 Med.-term Business Plan FY2010 Full Year (Forecast)

Millions of yen Shares (%) Millions of yen Shares (%) Differences Millions of yen Shares (%) Differences

Net Sales 50,070 100.0% 62,000 100.0% 23.8% 62,000 100.0% 23.8%

      Cost of Sales 26,275 52.5% 34,500 55.6% 31.3% 34,500 55.6% 31.3%

Gross Profi t 23,795 47.5% 27,500 44.4% 15.6% 27,500 44.4% 15.6%

      SG&A Expenses 15,276 30.5% 18,800 30.3% 23.1% 17,500 28.3% 14.6%

Operating Income 8,519 17.0% 8,700 14.0% 2.1% 10,000 16.1% 17.4%

Net Income 4,982 10.0% 4,500 7.3% -9.7% 5,800 9.4% 16.4%

FY2010 Earnings Forecasts
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Mitsuo Sawai, President

allergic disorder therapeutic agent that can be taken without water, and Latanoprost eye drops, a glaucoma 

and ocular hypertension therapeutic agent with reduced irritation at the time of administration.      

 The fi nal policy is to develop the systems necessary to achieve our long-term objective of consoli-

dated net sales of ¥100 billion by fi scal 2014. We will strengthen the business structure at the Group 

level to achieve this objective. Specifi cally, we will develop production capacity for six billion tablets and 

build a sales force of 425 MRs by fi scal 2011. 

 We forecast net sales of ¥62.0 billion, operating income of ¥10.0 billion and net income of ¥5.8 billion 

in fi scal 2010 through the implementation of these policies. I believe that we must achieve these fi gures 

without fail in order to reach the numerical targets for fi scal 2011 in the medium-term business plan. 

Q:  What future trends do you foresee in the generics market?  

In April 2010, the NHI raised medical service fees paid to NHI pharmacies for dispensing generic drugs. 

The calculation basis changed from the number of prescriptions to the quantity of drugs prescribed, the 

number of additional points was substantially increased, and regulations were revised to make it easier 

for patients to choose generic drugs. As a result, the proportion of generic drugs among drugs used is 

expected to further increase. However, major Japanese and foreign pharmaceutical manufacturers and 

companies from other industries are entering the generics market in a big way, realignment of the 

generic drugs industry through means including mergers, acquisitions and business alliances is advancing 

at an accelerating pace, and competition is likely to increasingly intensify. 

 As a specialty generic drug manufacturer, Sawai has tremendous advantages that new market en-

trants lack, including suffi cient production capacity and the capacity for highly stable supply made 

possible by forward-looking investment, a highly developed distribution system based on collaboration 

with wholesale distributors, a high share of generic drug transactions in the highly promising pharmacy 

market and an extensive line of new, high value-added products. By taking advantage of these strengths, 

we will establish a position as the top brand among generic drug manufacturers, further increase cus-

tomer trust in the brand and make it the impetus for success in market competition. 

Q:  Finally, please discuss profi t distribution to the shareholders.  

The Company considers profi t distribution to shareholders one of our most important management 

priorities. Our policy concerning profi t distribution is to maintain suffi cient internal reserves to prepare 

for future business development and continue to pay stable dividends, taking into consideration business 

performance each year, the dividend payout ratio and other factors.

 This year, in view of our favorable business performance and to reward our shareholders for their 

support, we increased the year-end dividend from ¥25 per share to ¥40 and the annual dividend from 

¥55 to ¥70. Although we aim for a dividend payout ratio of 30%, we will secure suffi cient internal 

reserves with a view to investment that will lead to new growth, such as R&D and capital expenditures 

that will increase future corporate value.
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Target of M1 TRUST

By FY2011, the fi nal year of the medium-term plan, we expect to achieve net sales of 
¥74.0 billion, operating income of ¥11.5 billion, and net income of ¥6.0 billion. These 
results will secure us a sure foothold on the way to becoming a ¥100-billion company.

Achieving Net Sales of ¥100 Billion within 5 years
To become the most trusted GE company with a strong presence throughout pharmaceutical 

business and through internal branding (M1) activities.

RIDING THE WAVE OF GENERICS ACCEPTANCE IN JAPAN

Basic Policy

● Basic Policy 1
 Net Sales Growth Far Exceeding Market Growth Rate
 Achieve net sales of ¥74.0 billion in fi scal 2011
 Avg. annual growth of 18.7% for Sawai vs. estimated 11.0% for generics market

● Basic Policy 2
 Strengthened Management Structure 
 Through Cost Control and Effective Strategic Investment
 End-to-end cost control and strategic investment aimed at concrete results 

● Basic Policy 3
 Establish Robust Sawai Brand
 Making the leap from high brand recognition to the “Brand of choice”

 T  Top Brand  Robust Sawai brand

 R  Reliability       Improved reliability

 U  Unity           United power together with our counterparties

 S  Stable Supply   Stable supply

 T  Top Share    Overwhelming share in Japanese market

Concept of Medium-term Business Plan M1 TRUST

 “Minna de 1-ban”and  Building Trust

We are enhancing our presence as a generic drug manufacturer and raising trust to the 

highest level through internal branding and the focused business strategy of the cur-

rent Medium-term Business Plan under the combined title M1 TRUST.

44.3
50.1

FY3/2009
Results

FY3/2010
Results

FY3/2011
Forecast

FY3/2012
Target

Net Sales

Operating Income

Net Income

62.0

74.0

4.7

2.4

8.5

5.0

10.0

5.8

11.5

6.0

100.0
Sales and Profi t Target (Consolidated) (Billions of yen)
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The generics market in Japan continues to grow steadily as various measures are implemented to pro-

mote the use of generics and achieve the government’s goal of a 30% volume share for generic drugs in 

fi scal 2012.  

Whereas the volume share of generics exceeds 50% across the board in the U.S., Canada, the U.K., Germany and other large countries 

around the world, in Japan, it was a mere 17.6% in fi scal 2008.

 In order to reduce patient co-payments and increase the effi ciency of medical insurance fi scal policy, the Japanese government has 

set the target of increasing the volume share of generic drugs to at least 30% of all ethical drugs by fi scal 2012. Following the latest 

revision of the prescription form and the revision to the Regulations for NHI Pharmacies’ and NHI Pharmacists’ Responsibilities in April 

2008, in April 2010 changes to the medical system were implemented, including a review of additional medical service fees for the 

dispensing of generic drugs.

 In addition, a market environment conducive to generics is developing rapidly. For instance, the number of hospitals that have intro-

duced the Diagnosis Procedure Combination (DPC) system, which offers attractive incentives for the dispensing of generics, exceeded 

1,200 in fi scal 2009. For this reason, full-scale expansion of the market for generic drugs is expected to begin.  

 In this market environment, as the company with the top brand name in generics, Sawai has set forth the “Patients fi rst” philosophy. 

To ensure that patients can obtain and use inexpensive, high-quality generics with confi dence and peace of mind, we will work to estab-

lish a stable supply system based on industry-leading production capacity and an R&D system to develop high-quality pharmaceuticals 

and will engage in information provision and education activities.

Market and Business Growth

52
16

Global average

USA

Canada

UK

Brazil

Germany

France

Italia

Japan

72
14

66
28

65
26

64
55

63
24

44
20

36
15

21
5

FY 1989 1991 1993 1995 1997 1999 2001 2003 2005 2007

19,729.0

6.12%

21,826.0

24,363.1

26,957.7

28,914.9

30,701.9 31,099.8
31,537.5

33,128.934,136.0

5.88%

6.60%

7.20%

7.57%

8.43%
8.61%

8.81%
9.05%9.11%

Volume basis          Price basisNational medical cost         Ratio to national income

Growth of National Medical Costs (Billions of yen) Generic Drug Share in Major Countries (CY2009/%)

Source:  IMS Market Segmentation, IMS Japan, May 2010 
Copyright IMS 2010

Notes:  Global average=Average of 29 nations in which the 
investigation was carried out.
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Measures for Promoting Generic Drug Use in Japan

Market Share of Generic Drugs in Japan

  Fiscal 2002  Changes in medical service fees and dispensing fees, including an additional fee for prepa-

ration of generic drugs, a fee for generic drug information provision and a fee for prescrip-

tions that include generic drugs   

  Fiscal 2003 Introduction of the DPC fl at-fee payment system

  Fiscal 2006  Revision of the prescription form to include physician signature authorizing substitution of 

generic drugs

  Fiscal 2008  Full-scale implementation of generic drug dissemination promotion measures, including 

revision to regulations governing medical care responsibilities, additional medical service 

fees for the dispensing of generic drugs, further revision of the prescription form (physician 

signature required to prohibit substitution of generic drugs) and abolition of the fee for 

prescriptions that include generic drugs

  Fiscal 2010  Implementation of additional measures to increase the share of generic drugs, including 

introduction of quantity-based staged incentives, change in the calculation basis from the 

number of prescriptions to the quantity of drugs prescribed and an increase in the number 

of additional points

Sep. 2007 Sep. 2009 Mar. 2013
Target

18.7%*
20.2%*

30%

*Source: Japan Ministry of Health, Labour and Welfare release (volume basis) FY3/2013

Government Target: 

Achieve 30% share of 
Japanese drug market 
on a volume basis
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Sawai leads the Japanese generics industry in R&D investment to develop 

high value-added new products.  

Sawai conducts in-house research to further improve quality and create high value-added products. With regard to raw mate-

rials, we minutely analyze purity, properties and other factors and carefully select from sources around the world only materi-

als that correspond to rigorous internal standards. 

 In October 2009, we opened the Pharmaceutical Technology Center, which has contributed further innovation in drug formu-

lation and enhanced our framework for increasing product value by using the latest formulation technologies and production 

technologies to add modifi cations and refi nements not only to newly developed products, but also to existing products as well. 

The center will further accelerate drug formulation research with the aim of achieving “Ever-superior quality”: Sawai Group’s 

commitment to continuous improvement, including active ingredient purity, tablet formulation devices and information services.   

 To accomplish these R&D goals, the Company actively invests in R&D. Our R&D expenses of ¥3,593 million are the highest 

among generics manufacturers in Japan.

 The size of the market for products whose patents are expected to expire in fi scal 2010 

and fi scal 2011 is approximately ¥540 billion, and competition is likely to further inten-

sify. However, Sawai plans to retain its position in the industry as the company with 

the top portfolio of new products by introducing 101 dosage forms in 53 active 

ingredients during the three-year period from fi scal 2009 to fi scal 2011.

 As the industry leader, we will continue to engage in the development and 

dissemination of high value-added generic drugs through new product 

development, the refi nement of existing products and the development of 

formulations in the fi eld of anticancer drugs, where the desire for generic 

drugs is high owing to high drug prices.

Research and Development

In accordance with our “Patients 

fi rst” corporate philosophy, Sawai  

is applying advanced technological 

capabilities to develop pharma-

ceuticals chosen by healthcare 

professionals.



Nam quis eros. Sed augue. Praesent leo. Aenean 
sed mauris. Phasellus odio risus, porta eu, dictum Development Department

Nam quis eros. Sed augue. Praesent leo. Aenean 
sed mauris. Phasellus odio risus, porta eu, dictum Pharmaceutical Development Department

Nam quis eros. Sed augue. Praesent leo. Aenean 
sed mauris. Phasellus odio risus, porta eu, dictum Analytical Research Department

Nam quis eros. Sed augue. Praesent leo. Aenean 
sed mauris. Phasellus odio risus, porta eu, dictum Biological Research Department

 

AMLODIPINE OD tabletsHALTHROW OD tablets LASOPRAN OD tablets
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Major Products Listed in FY2009

Sales by Therapeutic Category (%) Representative Sawai Pharmaceutical Value-added Products

Easy-to-administer, enhanced drugs

Capsules in tablet form Large, hard-to-swallow capsules made into tablet form

Miniaturized tablets Miniaturization of large, hard-to-swallow tablets

Improved taste Sugar and fi lm coatings to mask bitter taste

Enhancements that facilitate prescription and dispensing for healthcare providers

Easy to split Tablets with cut lines that make them easy to split

Improved safety Improved safety against humidity, temperature, sunlight and other conditions

Safety improvements linked to reducing medical errors

Better containers New, high-safety containers that protect against breakage

Pre-fi lled syringes Switch to syringes with solution fi lled in advance

Clear displays Clear descriptions of drug names, standards and effects included in packaging

New Products Listed in May 2010

Trade Name Active Ingredient Dosage Form Strength

MILNACIPRAN HYDROCHLORIDE Milnacipran Hydrochloride Tablets 12.5mg

RISPERIDONE OD Risperidone Oral Disintegrating Tablets 3mg

LATANOPROST Latanoprost Ophthalmic Solutions 50µg/1mL

AIROCOOL Isosorbide Mononitrate Tablets 10mg

CEVOZYL Alacepril Tablets 12.5mg, 50mg

DILTIAZEM HYDROCHLORIDE Diltiazem Hydrochloride Tablets 60mg

INHIROCK Cilazapril Tablets 0.25mg

TECHNIS Ifenprodil Tartrate Tablets 10mg

SAWATENE L-Carbocisteine Tablets 500mg

CRINDAMYCIN PHOSPHATE Clindamycin Phosphoric Acid Ester Gel 10mg/1g

D-ALFA Alfacalcidol Soft Capsules 3µg

MIZORIBINE Mizoribine Tablets 25mg, 50mg

CETIRIZINE HYDROCHLORIDE OD Cetirizine Hydrochloride Oral Disintegrating Tablets 5mg, 10mg

EPINAZION Epinastine Hydrochloride Dry Syrup 10mg/1g

Cardiovascular drugs 27.1%
Gastro-intestinal drugs 15.4%
Other metabolic drugs 11.4%
Antibiotics 8.7%
Blood/body fluid 
pharmaceutical products 8.3%
Central nervous system 5.3%
Chemotherapeutic drugs 3.8%
Antiallergic drugs 3.3%
Vitamins 2.9%
Others 13.8%

Trade Name Active Ingredient Dosage Form Strength

HALTHROW OD Tamsulosin Hydrochloride Oral Disintegrating Tablets 0.1mg, 0.2mg

LASOPRAN OD Lansoprazole Oral Disintegrating Tablets 15mg, 30mg

AMLODIPINE OD Amlodipine Besilate Tablets 2.5mg, 5mg

REBAMIPIDE Rebamipide Tablets 100mg

ALPROSTADIL Alprostadil Injections 5µg/1mL, 10µg/2mL, 5µg/1mL, 10µg/2mL

LEVOFLOXACIN Levofl oxacin Hydrate
Tablets 100mg

Fine Granules 100mg/1g

CILNIDIPINE Cilnidipine Tablets 5mg, 10mg

BICALUTAMIDE Bicalutamide Tablets 80mg

PRANLUKAST Pranlukast Hydrate Capsules 112.5mg

FLUVASTATIN Fluvastatin Sodium Tablets 10mg, 20mg, 30mg

IRINOTECAN HYDROCHLORIDE Irinotecan Hydrochloride Injections 40mg/2ml, 100mg/5ml

ACARBOSE Acarbose Tablets 100mg, 50mg

SARPOGRELATE HYDROCHLORIDE Sarpogrelate Hydrochloride Tablets 100mg, 50mg

LENDEM D Brotizolam Tablets 0.25mg

EPIRUBICIN Epirubicin Hydrochloride Injections 10mg/5mL/1vial, 50mg/25mL/1vial

CEFCAPENE PIVOXILE HYDROCHLORIDE Cefcapene Pivoxil Hydrochloride Hydrate Tablets 75mg, 100mg

TOSUFLOXACIN TOSILATE Tosufl oxacin Tosilate Tablets 150mg, 75mg

MEROPENEM Meropenem Trihydrate Injections 250mg/1vial, 500mg/1vial

ISOPROPYL UNOPROSTONE Isopropyl Unoprostone Ophthalmic Solutions 1.2mg/1mL

TEMOCAPRIL HYDROCHLORIDE Temocapril Hydrochloride Tablets 1mg, 2mg, 4mg
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With stable supply as the watchword, Sawai is upgrading its production system.  

With stable supply as our watchword, Sawai has actively engaged in forward-looking investment to upgrade production capacity 

and achieved the highest level in the generic drugs industry. We have earned the trust of wholesale distributors and medical 

institutions, alike, thanks to a solid track record in stable supply made possible by this production capability. 

 Production expansion at the Sanda Factory in Hyogo Prefecture, the Company’s state-of-the-art main production facility and 

the Kyushu Factory of subsidiary Medisa Shinyaku has resulted in annual production capacity of 4.8 billion tablets in fi scal 2009, 

approximately three times the capacity in fi scal 2004. We are also expanding our line of injection products for DPC hospitals and 

augmenting production capacity for these products. We started operation of a prefi lled syringe injection manufacturing line at the 

Kanto Factory and expanded the injection production line at the Kyushu Factory.

 Future plans call for further reinforcement of our supply system’s stability in preparation for achieving the long-term 

objective of consolidated net sales of ¥100 billion. To that end, we will expand the production system, improve production 

effi ciency and establish infrastructure to produce 6.0 billion tablets by fi scal 2011. 

 The Company aims to release 100 new product items by the end of fi scal 2011. As the 

product line expands and measures to promote the dissemination of generic drugs 

progress, demand is expected to increase apace. We believe that in these circum-

stances the highest-priority for a generic drug manufacturer should be to ensure 

high quality and stable supply by establishing a high-variety, low-volume 

production system, a characteristic requirement of the generic drugs business, 

and preparing and implementing an appropriate production plan. Accord-

ingly, we will work to further boost production effi ciency at our factories 

and establish production and supply systems aligned with market needs.

Production Facilities

We recognize that the establish-

ment of a stable supply of ge-

neric drugs is a social responsibil-

ity of a generics manufacturer. 

As the industry leader, we are 

leading the way in undertaking 

reinforcement of production and 

supply systems.



Factory Outline Special Features Production Capacity

Kyushu Factory (Fukuoka Prefecture) Site Area:  
70,351m2

Total Floor Area:  
22,277m2

Production Capacity:  
 830 million tablets, 
36 million V/A/PFS

Dosage Forms Handled: 
 Injection, granules, 
capsules, tablets,  
ointments

•  The main plant and the 
historical center of the 
Sawai Pharmaceutical 
Group

•  Handles a broad spec-
trum of dosage forms

•  Includes production 
facilities for injection 
solutions

Sanda Factory (Hyogo Prefecture) Site Area:  
14,686m2

Total Floor Area:  
21,932m2

Production Capacity:  
 2,400 million tablets

Dosage Forms Handled: 
 Tablets

• Dedicated tablet factory

•  Completed third-stage 
expansion in 2009, 
increasing production 
capacity 1.5 times, 5.3 
billion tablet production 
system established.

•  Features production fa-
cilities for special drugs 
like hormone solutions.

Kanto Factory (Chiba Prefecture) Site Area:  
85,046m2

Total Floor Area:  
7,740m2

Production Capacity:  
 543 million tablets, 
2 million V/A/PFS

Dosage Forms Handled: 
Tablets, capsules, 
granules, injection, other

•  Includes Sawai’s own 
syringe plant, a rarity 
among drug manufac-
turers

Kyushu Factory of 
Medisa Shinyaku (Fukuoka Prefecture)

Site Area:  
34,103m2

Total Floor Area:  
16,300m2

Production Capacity:  
 1,440 million tablets

Dosage Forms Handled: 
Tablets, granules, other

•  Construction work for 
sixth-stage expansion 
fi nished in 2008

•  Largest factory among 
our group companies, 
with large facilities for 
special drugs like OD 
tablets
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Company’s Production Capacity Production Facilities

Injections (million A/V/PFS)

Kanto Factory
Sanda Factory
Kyushu Factory 
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Tablets (million tablets)

Injections (million A/V/PFS)

Tablets (million tablets)

Kanto Factory

Kaken Shoyaku Co., Ltd.
Yasato Factory

Sanda Factory

Kyushu Factory

Medisa Shinyaku Inc.
Kyushu Factory

Osaka Factory
Pharmaceutical Technology Center

Head Office/Research Laboratories

Major Factories of Sawai Pharmaceutical
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Sawai is working to further improve marketing activities through the reinforcement of 

marketing capabilities.  

Sawai is vigorously targeting DPC hospitals and NHI pharmacies in its sales activities, where expanded use of generic drugs is 

expected. Net sales to hospitals increased by more than 20% year on year in fi scal 2009, with adoptions at DPC hospitals 

increasing by a strikingly high rate of 48%. 

 To implement even more vigorous selling activities directed at this expanding market, the Company is increasing the 

number of dedicated hospital MRs, whose primary responsibility is selling to DPC hospitals. We provide advanced academic 

information through briefi ngs and periodic visits to hospital managers and medical offi ces, and the hospital MRs and area MRs 

collaborate to offer pharmaceuticals cost reduction proposals. Japan’s generic drug dissemination rate of approximately 20% is 

lower than that of other countries, and further generic drug detail activities by MRs are required.

 Efforts to further develop the NHI pharmacy market are progressing steadily, and net sales in this market increased 

25.5% year on year in fi scal 2009. As a result of an April 2010 revision to the drug formulation 

compensation system at NHI pharmacies, the share of generic drugs in this market is 

likely to increase.

       The Company is well regarded by wholesale distributors within the NHI phar-

macy and DPC hospital channels for quality, information, stable supply and the 

Sawai brand recognition, and we are steadily increasing sales through distribu-

tors. We intend to increase our market share by continuing to pursue collabo-

ration with distributors in both channels and skillfully utilizing the channels 

of distributors located nearby the customers that are capable of providing 

meticulous customer service.

Marketing and Sales Operations

To cope with anticipated further 

expansion of demand for generic 

drugs, Sawai will reinforce mar-

keting activities in various sales 

channels by increasing the sales 

force and improving the quality 

of MR activities.
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Head Office/Research Laboratories

Kobe

Sapporo

Sendai

Tokyo

Yokohama

Saitama
West Tokyo

Fukuoka

Kumamoto

Hiroshima

Nagoya

Osaka

East Tokyo
Joshinetsu

Hokuriku

Kyoto

Shizuoka

Okayama

Takamatsu

Others
Market alliance
Wholesalers
Agencies

Others
Dispensing pharmacy
Clinic
DPC hospital
Hospital

 FY 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009  FY 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

16,512

7,879
1,172
1,053

20,041

11,651

1,343
1,282

20,671

13,612

1,949
1,399

22,459

18,023

2,550
1,252

24,493

22,064

2,259
1,254

29.4

3.2

44.5

2.3

20.6

37.8

3.1

37.9

3.2

18.0

40.4

3.3

35.6

3.5

17.1

49.4

0.6

31.5

6.9

11.6

52.3

0.6

28.0

8.7

10.4

Sales by Market Channel (Millions of yen)

Sales Composition by 
Medical Institution Types (Non-Consolidated/%)

8 Branches

● Sapporo Branch

● Sendai Branch

● Saitama Branch

● Tokyo Branch

● Nagoya Branch

● Osaka Branch

● Hiroshima Branch

● Fukuoka Branch

11 Sales Offi ces

● Joshinetsu Sales Offi ce

● Tokyo-Higashi Sales Offi ce

● Tokyo-Nishi Sales Offi ce

● Yokohama Sales Offi ce

● Shizuoka Sales Offi ce

● Kyoto Sales Offi ce

● Kobe Sales Offi ce

● Hokuriku Sales Offi ce

● Takamatsu Sales Offi ce

● Okayama Sales Offi ce

● Kumamoto Sales Offi ce

Branches and Sales Offi ces

 FY 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

248

311 323
341

357

Head Offi ce Entrance Hall Number of MRs
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To further build the Sawai brand and win customer trust, we are implementing the M1 Proj-

ect, an internal branding activity to raise the awareness of each employee and reinforce the 

corporate structure and collective power of the Group.  

Trust is the cornerstone of the Sawai brand, and we believe that trust is something that is built by each individual employ-

ee. In accordance with this belief, we launched the M1 Project in October 2006. The M1 Project is an activity in which 

every Group employee participates under the watchword “No. 1 All Together.” We have completed Phases 1 through 4 of 

the project and are now implementing Phase 5.

The M1 Project

 Phase 1 (fi scal 2006): 

 Phase 2 (fi scal 2007): 

 Phase 3 (fi scal 2008): 

 Phase 4 (fi scal 2009): 

 Phase 5 (fi scal 2010): 

Unifi cation of awareness and values — Launch of the M1 Committee, drawing up of 

the corporate philosophy and launch of the M1 Project Team and task forces

Instilling of the M1 Project — Activities to inculcate the corporate philosophy, continuation 

of M1 Project Team and task force activities, start of M1 Club activities (full-participation 

small group activities)

Demonstration of management leadership — Launch of management improvement study 

groups, evolution into activities to deliver business results in unison with management

Fostering of mutual understanding and trust — Consideration of a vision for Sawai fi ve 

years from now by a study group, increased emphasis on information sharing by means 

of offsite meetings of department managers 

Reinforcement of the competitive foundation — Formulation of a medium- to 

long-tem growth strategy, reinforcement of cost competitiveness, information sharing 

and personnel development

Progress under the M1 Project
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As a leader in the generic drugs industry, Sawai engages in wide-ranging publicity to increase 

recognition of generics and promote their dissemination.  

Sawai’s activities to promote understanding and dissemination of generic drugs began in 1997, a time when recognition and 

understanding of generics was still low among the general public and healthcare professionals. We placed the fi rst advertise-

ment by a generics manufacturer in a medical journal and also began running newspaper advertisements targeting the general 

public. In 2004 we began airing TV commercials to educate the general public about generic drugs.

 Today, we engage in advertising activities to build the Sawai brand as the generics manufacturer chosen by healthcare 

professionals as well as advertising targeting the general public to increase understanding of generic drugs. Through these 

vigorous publicity activities, we strive to promote the dissemination of generics and to establish a robust brand and 

unshakable customer trust.

Publicity Activities

Advertising to Healthcare Professionals

Advertising in Newspapers
● Asahi Shimbun and Nihon Keizai Shimbun
This advertising employs a motif of climbing a staircase and the message 
“Our mission is to always deliver ‘Ever-superior quality’” to express the 
Sawai corporate posture.

● Advertising in Magazines for the General Public
Nikkei Business April 13, 2009 issue (left)
Karada ni ii Koto June 16, 2009 issue (right)
We inserted advertorials with content suited to the characteristics of each 
magazine. We publicized the management strategy and product strategy in 
Nikkei Business, a business publication, and informed readers about the use 
of generic drugs in Karada ni ii Koto, a lifestyle information magazine.

TV Commercials
We mainly aired two TV commercials: Formulation Innovation, a spot that 
expressed the corporate posture of developing formulations that meet the 
needs of patients and healthcare professionals, and Pharmaceuticals 
Factory, a spot shot at the Kyushu Factory that showcased Sawai Pharma-
ceutical’s uncompromising commitment to quality.

Co-sponsored Symposia
To contribute to patients 
and society, several times 
a year we hold generics 
education seminars for 
the general public. 
Audience size is approxi-
mately 500 people.

である。九州工場をはじめ、三田工場、
大阪工場、子会社メディサ新薬の九州
工場、そして平成17年には関東工場が
加わり、5工場体制となった。特にシリ
ンジラインは国内では数社しか備えて
おらず、沢井製薬の生産能力の高さを
示している（写真２）。これらの工場は
実際には現在生産している量の約2倍
の能力を有しており、ジェネリック医薬
品のさらなる普及にも対応できるよう
先行した増強を進めている。
　澤井社長は、「“なによりも患者さん
のために”という理念に基づいた企業
活動の中で、ジェネリック医薬品のリ
ーディングカンパニーとして存在感を
示していきたい」と語る。

ている。これらの先発品は水なしで服
用できる口腔内崩壊錠で、口の中で錠
剤がすぐ溶けてから腸溶性や徐放性
（徐々に有効成分が放出されること）を
示す、いわゆるハイブリッド型の医薬品
である。そのために、直径およそ0.2～
0.3ｍｍという微粒子に何層ものコー
ティングを施し、薬物の溶出をコントロ
ールできるよう工夫されている。
　ジェネリック医薬品は効果や安全性
が、既に市場に出ている先発品と生物
学的に同等であると証明されていなけ
ればならない。製品によっては、先発メ
ーカーの100を超える特許を回避して
開発するため、さらに高い技術が要求
される。こうした微粒子にコーティング
する技術は非常に難しいが、沢井製薬
では数十～数百μmの粒子にコーティ
ングする技術を確立している。加えて

　高齢化社会の中で、医療費節減の有
効な方法の一つとしてジェネリック医
薬品の使用促進が挙げられる。厚生労
働省では、3年後の2012年度までに
ジェネリック医薬品のシェアを数量ベ
ースで30％以上にするという目標を
掲げている。そのジェネリック医薬品
業界においてトップを走るのが沢井製
薬だ。
　沢井製薬の医薬品納入先は現在、国
立病院など全国約7000病院（カバー
率約78％）、約3万8000医院・診療
所（カバー率約37％）、約4万2000
保険薬局（カバー率約81％）に上る。売
上高も伸び続け、2007年度の約376
億円から2008年度は450億円に達
する見込みだ。
　だが本格的なジェネリック普及時代
を目前に、様々な企業がジェネリック
医薬品市場に参入し、競争は激しさを
増している。そんな中、社長の澤井光郎
氏は「事業の選択と集中を進め、『量』か
ら『質』へとシフトする」を経営方針と
して掲げている。特に強化していくの
は、DPC対象病院および地域の基幹病
院への手厚いフォローアップ、全国に
分散させた5工場における安定供給、

抗がん剤分野など新たな市場へのさら
なる注力、そしてユーザーのニーズに
あった医薬品の開発だ。ここではユー
ザーニーズに応える医薬品の開発につ
いて紹介していく。

　沢井製薬取締役生産本部副本部長・
技術部長である高橋嘉輝氏によると、
ニーズにあった医薬品開発のポイント
は3つ。患者さんにとって飲みやすいこ
と、コ・メディカル（薬剤師、看護師など）
の方々が投与しやすいこと、医療過誤
を防ぐため他の医薬品と間違いにくい
ことだ。
　患者さんが飲みやすい医薬品の例と
して、先発品はカプセル剤だった抗生
物質を、小型で飲みやすい錠剤にした
ことが挙げられる。服用してからの溶
出や血中濃度は先発品と同等でなけれ
ばならないため、カプセル剤から錠剤
に変更して同等性を得るには、添加物
をどうすれば良いか、錠剤の強度はど
の程度にするかなど、開発はゼロから
のスタートとなる。それをクリアした
のが沢井製薬の研究開発陣だ。
　また、今年発売予定の胃・十二指腸潰
瘍や排尿障害の治療薬においても、沢
井製薬の技術力はいかんなく発揮され

調剤過誤を防ぐために識別コードを錠
剤自体に刻印し、また先発品の形状が
平面だったのを2段の丸みを帯びたも
のにし、錠剤が磨り減りにくいよう工
夫している（写真1）。
　このほかにもコ・メディカルの方々
が処方・調剤しやすいように錠剤に割
線を入れたり、注射剤では調合の手間
を省き、間違いを防ぐため、あらかじめ
薬剤が充填されたプレフィルドシリン
ジを新たに開発したり、様々な工夫を
こらしてい
る。「先発品に
はない付加価
値をつけるこ
とで、単なる
『特許切れの
成分を使った
医薬品』とい
うだけではな
く、『沢井製薬
のオリジナル
ブランドの医薬品』を作っていきたい」
と高橋氏は話す。
　沢井製薬はこのように新たな技術
に挑戦し、ユーザーに最適な医薬品を
提供し続けている（下表）。

　沢井製薬はその製剤技術だけではな
く、医療関係者への情報提供にも力を

入れている。窓口となる医薬
情報担当者（MR）の育成を図
るとともに、DPC対象病院専
門のMRを増員し、情報伝達
をより手厚く行う予定だ。ま
た医薬品情報ウェブサイトの
充実、コールセンターの設置
など、医療関係者からの問い
合わせにリアルタイムで応え
る体制づくりにも取り組んで
いる。
　また、患者さんへのサポート体制も充
実している。ジェネリック医薬品や服
用薬について相談できるフリーダイヤ
ルを設け、問い合わせに対応している。
　生産工場の規模も国内トップクラス

リーディングカンパニーの挑戦

医薬品を使う人を第一に考えて

現場力の強化

取締役
生産本部副本部長・技術部長
高橋嘉輝氏

研究所では最新設備が導入され、クリーンな環境で作業が進められる。

ジェネリック医薬品企業の挑戦

www.sawai.co.jp

代表取締役社長　澤井光郎氏

沢井製薬

ジェネリック医薬品市場をリードするトップブランド

選択と集中で
「選ばれる医薬品メーカー」めざす

写真1　新発売の口腔内崩壊錠。錠剤自体の大きさ
は直径8.5mm。錠剤の中のオレンジ色の粒が、腸
で溶けるよう一粒ごとに6層ものコーティングが施
されている。（イメージ写真）

表　 沢井製薬における代表的な付加価値製剤例

服用しやすいように改良した例

コ・メディカルの方々が処方・調剤しやすいように改良した例

医療過誤防止や安全性改善につながる例

カプセルの錠剤化 大きくて飲みづらいカプセル剤を錠剤に変更

錠剤の小型化 サイズが大きく飲みにくい錠剤を小型化

味の改良 苦みを感じる薬剤を糖衣やフィルムコーティングなどでマスキング

分割性の改良 錠剤に入れる割線に工夫して分割しやすいように改良

安定性の改善 湿度、温度、光などに対する安定性を改善

容器改良 容器の割れ防止を防ぐため、安全性の高い容器に変更

プレフィルドシリンジ 注射器にあらかじめ薬剤が入っている注射剤に変更

表示の明確化 錠剤が入っているシートに製品名・規格や薬効を分かりやすく表示

写真2　関東工場のプレフィルドシリンジ製造ライン



Basic Policy on Corporate Governance

One of the Company’s most important management priorities is 

to develop a management system that can ensure prompt, appro-

priate decision-making and business execution in response to 

changes in the external environment and practice highly fair and 

transparent management in order to realize the basic management 

policy of enhancing corporate value through profi table growth and 

maximizing shareholder interests from a long-term perspective.  

Description of Management Organization

The Company has a comparatively small management organiza-

tion consisting of twelve directors and fi ve corporate auditors 

(including three external corporate auditors). In view of its size and 

management style, Sawai has for some time employed the corpo-

rate auditor system. Since the corporate auditors have the neces-

sary legal authority with respect to the supervision of directors, 

such as the right to demand injunction against actions that fall 

outside the scope of the Company’s purposes, and have the 

obligation to attend meetings of the Board of Directors and 

express necessary opinions, the Company believes that they 

function similarly to external directors. The Company also believes 

that the supervisory function of the outside corporate auditors 

with respect to the Board of Directors is effective. In addition, the 

Company selects external corporate auditors from among candi-

dates knowledgeable about the law, taxation, accounting, and 

other disciplines who have insights into corporate management.

 The three external corporate auditors satisfy the conditions 

necessary for supervision of the Company’s executives and Board 

of Directors objectively and independently without bias toward 

the interest of specifi c interested parties and have no business 

connections with the Sawai Group.    

 The Company strives to demonstrate management fl exibility 

through vitalization of the Board of Directors, the Management 

Conference, and the Conference of Head Offi ce General Managers 

and promotes ethical standards and information sharing appropri-

ate to a pharmaceutical company that affects people’s lives. The 

Board of Directors convened for a total of fourteen regular month-

ly meetings and extraordinary meetings in the year under review. 

General Meeting of Shareholders
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Internal Inspection 
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Audit

Elect   Discharge Elect   Discharge Elect   Discharge

Investigate Audit

Audit

Audit

Consolidated Subsidiaries

Supervise

Confer

Confer
Internal Control 

Committee
Compliance 
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Report

Auditors
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Corporate Governance and Compliance

Corporate Governance Structure

Sawai is developing a sound and highly transparent management structure based on the recognition that 

corporate governance is the management platform for the fulfi llment of corporate social responsibility.



The Company has a small management organization that allows 

for a close exchange of views and reciprocal checks on a regular 

basis. The Company’s Articles of Incorporation provide for a 

maximum of fi fteen directors. In addition, the Company seeks to 

ensure rigorous auditing and supervision company-wide through 

means including business site audits conducted by the Internal 

Inspection Section.

 To ensure the appropriateness and effi ciency of business 

operations throughout the Group, the Company ensures adher-

ence to the corporate philosophy and management policies at 

Group companies and provides direction and guidance on matters 

related to the day-to-day execution of business. The Group’s 

consolidated subsidiaries undergo accounting audits required for 

consolidated auditing performed the Company’s independent 

auditors as well as internal audits performed by the Company’s 

Board of Auditors and Internal Inspection Section.

Internal Controls and Compliance
Basic Policy on Internal Control Systems

To prevent the occurrence of corporate scandals and to realize 

appropriateness, effi ciency and transparency in management and 

business operations, the Company has established a basic policy 

concerning the development of internal control systems (partially 

amended in June 2009).

 With regard to the establishment of standards of conduct, the 

Company engages in activities to ensure appropriate awareness of 

the Sawai brand on the part of each employee in accordance with 

three activities policies: 1) the conduct of activities to inculcate the 

corporate philosophy among all Group employees, 2) the conduct 

of group-wide activities and training by the General Affairs Depart-

ment together with an M1 Project committee to ensure that the 

corporate philosophy and code of conduct are fi rmly instilled, and 

3) rigorous assurance of compliance with the corporate philosophy 

and code of conduct in business operations and of legal compliance 

on the part of all executives and employees.  

 With regard to the establishment of corporate governance 

systems, the Company fi rmly adheres to the corporate governance 

systems it has developed and announced to the public and con-

stantly strives to enhance those systems. 

 Concerning the monitoring and verifi cation system, the 

Company is reinforcing the Internal Inspection Section to perform 

internal control audits and undergoes rigorous audits performed by 

the corporate auditors and independent auditors. When a corpo-

rate auditor requests an assistant, a member of the Internal 

Inspection Section is assigned to provide assistance.    

 To forestall improper conduct by the Board of Directors, we 

have set up a reporting mechanism for employees to report 

directly to the Audit Offi ce (currently to a corporate auditor) as 

stated in the regulations concerning the corporate ethics help line.

Compliance System

In the development and establishment of the business execution 

system, the Company has addressed the issues of compliance and 

risk management. The Compliance Committee convenes regular 

and special meetings to deliberate on compliance-related matters 

and engages in compliance education and awareness activities for 

executives and employees. The Compliance Committee is made up 

of the directors, standing statutory auditors, and members of the 

Corporate Administration Division departments and maintains a 

secretariat in the Compliance Section. With regard to risk manage-

ment systems, the Reliability Assurance Division is the organiza-

tion responsible for product quality and safety. It performs rigor-

ous quality and safety supervision based on GQP (Good Quality 

Practice) and GVP (Good Vigilance Practice) standards. In accor-

dance with the Risk Management Rules, the General Affairs 

Department supervises the monitoring of risks pertaining to 

business operations as a whole and accident and disaster preven-

tion measures, and the director of the Corporate Administration 

Division is the chief risk management offi cer.

 With regard to information management, the Company takes 

all possible measures to control material facts and confi dential 

information learned in the course of business in accordance with 

the Insider Trading Control Rules and Information Security Man-

agement Rules. The Company also strives to ensure the timely and 

appropriate disclosure of IR information and other important 

information to be disseminated outside the Company.

 The Company ensures the appropriate operation of the corpo-

rate ethics help line and rigorously implements measures to 

prevent and deal with sexual harassment and moral harassment.

 With regard to the exclusion of anti-social forces, the Com-

pany rigorously ensures open and aboveboard business operation 

and bans dishonest business dealings. The Company cooperates 

with the police and other concerned public authorities on matters 

involving anti-social forces or groups that pose a threat to public 

order or safety. 
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Regulation Under the Pharmaceutical Affairs Law and 

Other Laws   

The Sawai Group is subject to regulation under the Pharmaceutical 

Affairs Law and other relevant laws and regulations, and permis-

sion, registration, designation, licensing, and notifi cation in the 

prefectures in which the Group has business offi ces are required by 

law. A violation of the law with respect to drug manufacturing and 

marketing approval could result in the suspension of business or 

revocation of approval by the authorities and have an adverse 

impact on the Company’s business results.    

   

Changes to the Drug Price System and 

Medical Care System

The marketing of ethical drugs, the Sawai Group’s mainstay 

products, requires listing in the drug price standards established 

by the government. Studies of the market prices of drugs are 

conducted, and the prices of nearly all items are reduced in drug 

price revisions conducted once every two years. Reviews of the 

medical insurance system are also conducted for the purpose of 

curbing expanding healthcare costs. Future implementation of 

major changes to the drug price system or policies to reduce 

healthcare costs could have an adverse impact on the Group’s 

business results.

Litigation Concerning Intellectual Property Rights

The Sawai Group conducts rigorous examinations of intellectual 

property rights, focusing on substance, use, process, and formula-

tion patents and engages in product development that refl ects 

consideration of the Unfair Competition Prevention Law. Never-

theless, in many cases multiple process or formulation patents 

remain in force with respect to the original drugs on which the 

generic drugs sold by the Sawai Group are modeled, and at times 

lawsuits are fi led based on these patents. Such legal action could 

have an adverse impact on the Group’s fi nancial position or 

business results.

 

The Impact of Competition

To avoid unprofi table business and the unavoidable discontinua-

tion of products resulting from frequent price reductions, the 

Sawai Group strives to sell its products at prices that ensure fair 

profi ts. Nevertheless, many generic drug manufacturers are 

entering the market, and intense competition causes price deterio-

ration. Furthermore, original drug manufacturers are devising 

measures to secure market share even following the expiration of 

patents. These trends could prevent achievement of the Com-

pany’s planned sales, which could have an adverse impact on the 

Group’s business results.

   

Product Discontinuation and Recall

Since the active ingredients in the generic drugs sold by the Sawai 

Group have a proven record of effectiveness and safety in use 

confi rmed over fi xed periods of time and have been reexamined, in 

principle, the risk of occurrence of unknown, severe side effects is 

extremely low. Nevertheless, the occurrence of unforeseen new 

side effects or accidents such as contamination from impurities 

would make product discontinuation and recall unavoidable, which 

could have an adverse impact on business results.

Production Disruption or Delays Due to Disasters, etc.

The Sawai Group disperses its production sites in Fukuoka, Hyogo, 

Osaka, Chiba, and Ibaraki Prefectures. Nevertheless, the shutdown 

of operation at a manufacturing site due to the occurrence of a 

natural disaster, technical problem, or regulatory problem could 

result in the disruption of supply of certain products, which could 

have an adverse impact on business results. 

 Also, the Group is dependent on specifi c sources of supply for 

important raw materials. A supply interruption resulting from a 

disaster or any other reason could have an adverse impact on 

business results. 
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Operational Risks

The following matters, among others, may have a material impact on the decisions of investors 

concerning the Company’s overall business condition, financial situation, management performance, 

and future prospects.



Note: 1. Diluted net income per common share is not disclosed in 2009, 2008, 2007 and 2006 because there were no outstanding convertible securities. 
 2. Net assets as of 2010, 2009 and 2008 included minority shareholders’ interest due to the application of the Japanese Corporate Law. 

Millions of yen

Years ended March 31 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Net sales ¥ 50,070 ¥ 44,284  ¥ 37,631  ¥ 34,317  ¥ 26,616

Cost of sales 26,275 25,156 20,130 17,357 13,265

Gross profit 23,795 19,128 17,501 16,960 13,351

Selling, general and administrative expenses 15,276 14,460 13,453 12,267 9,052

Operating income 8,519 4,668 4,048 4,693 4,299

Income before income taxes and minority interests 8,372 4,320 3,129 4,166 5,043

Net income 4,982 2,439 1,739 2,260 3,010

Total assets ¥ 81,236 ¥ 72,320 66,295 67,827 51,997

Inventories 18,081 13,588 13,500 13,768 9,609

Total current liabilities 25,441 20,911 17,152 18,525 18,352

Total long-term liabilities 9,537 9,703 8,938 9,981 4,811

Shareholders’ equity — — — — 27,543

Net assets 46,258 41,706 40,205 39,321 —

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities ¥   7,907 ¥   3,169 9,549 (4,370) 1,884

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (5,329) (3,037) (6,562) (10,551) (2,313)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 348 1,027 (4,958) 15,449 2,022

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 9,474 6,548 5,389 7,360 6,832

Research and development (R&D) expenses 3,593 3,409 3,222 3,085 2,241

Capital expenditures 5,370 2,841 6,567 9,877 3,260

Depreciation and amortization 3,025 2,709 2,575 1,964 1,640

%

Ratio of R&D expenses to sales 7.2 7.7 8.6 9.0 8.4

Return on equity 11.8 6.2 4.6 6.9 11.5

Shareholders’ equity to total assets 54.5 55.4 58.3 55.8 53.0

Yen

Amounts per common share:

Net income—basic ¥ 317.32 ¥ 155.32 ¥  110.73 ¥   157.67 ¥   217.08

Net income—diluted 316.86 — — — —

Cash dividends applicable to period 70.00 55.00 55.00 55.00 50.00

Net assets  2,817.65 2,551.06 2,460.17 2,408.42 2,014.11

21

FINANCIAL SECTION

Five-year Summary
For the Years Ended March 31, 2010, 2009, 2008, 2007 and 2006



BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

Fiscal 2009, the year ended March 31, 2010, brought continuation 

of the worldwide recession. Despite signs of recovery in demand 

fueled by the government’s economic stimulus measures and other 

favorable developments, economic activity in Japan remained stag-

nant owing to the worsening of the employment and personal in-

come situation.

 In the ethical drugs industry, the generic drugs market, primarily 

NHI pharmacies, is gradually expanding. Measures to promote the use 

of generic drugs have been implemented in recent years, including the 

latest revision of the prescription form and the provision of additional 

medical service fees for the dispensing of generic drugs as part of a revi-

sion of the medical care compensation system in April 2008. Additional 

changes to the healthcare system were implemented In April 2010, in-

cluding a review of the provision additional medical service fees for the 

dispensing of generic drugs, and further dissemination and penetration 

of generics is expected. At the same time, competition in the generics 

market has intensified following market entry on the part of Japanese 

and foreign companies from a number of industries. 

 In these circumstances, in keeping with the “Patients first” corpo-

rate philosophy, the Sawai Group continued to implement measures 

to ensure product quality, stable supply, and information provision. In 

addition, we implemented policies and measures set forth in the M1 

TRUST medium-term business plan: “Reinforcement of marketing to 

DPC hospitals,” “End-to-end cost control,” and “Reinforcement of col-

laboration with wholesale distributors.”

INCOME AND EXPENSES

As a result of these developments, consolidated net sales in fiscal 2009 

increased by 13.1% year on year to ¥50,070 million.

 In the results for sales growth by channel, sales growth in the 

wholesaler channel was particularly strong, increasing by 22.4%, and 

sales through regional sales agencies increased by 9.1%. The sales 

increase is attributable to expanded use of generic drugs at NHI phar-

macies and hospitals.
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 Cost of sales rose 4.4% year on year to ¥26,275 million, while gross 

profit rose 24.4% to ¥23,795 million. Accordingly, the gross profit to 

sales ratio increased by 4.3 percentage points to 47.5%.

 Selling, general and administrative expenses increased by 5.6% year 

on year to ¥15,276 million as a result of increases of ¥424 million in 

personnel expenses and ¥185 million in R&D expenses. 

 As a result, operating income increased by 82.5% over the previous 

year to ¥8,519 million. The operating profit to sales ratio rose by 6.5 

percentage points year on year to 17.0%.

 After the recording of a ¥35 million loss on disposal of buildings and 

structures for the year under review, net income increased by 104.3% 

year on year to ¥4,982 million. Net income per share rose ¥162.0 from 

the previous year to ¥317.32.

 The return on equity rose by 5.6 percentage points from the previ-

ous year to 11.8%.

R&D EXPENSES

The Research and Development Division controls the Group’s R&D 

system. In keeping with the Group’s “Patients first” corporate phi-

losophy, the Division engages in R&D activities focused on the de-

velopment of pharmaceuticals that meet medical treatment needs, 

including the development of high value-added products requiring 

innovation in drug formulation.  

 In fiscal 2009, the Group obtained approval for the manufacture 

and sale of 53 items. R&D expenses increased by 5.4% from the previ-

ous year to ¥3,593 million, while the ratio of R&D expenses to sales fell 

0.5 percentage points to 7.2%.

FINANCIAL POSITION

Total assets at the end of the fiscal 2009 were ¥81,236 million, an in-

crease of ¥8,916 million, or 12.3% increase, from the previous year. 

 Current assets rose by ¥9,062 million to ¥48,016 million, primarily 

due to increases of ¥2,926 million in cash and cash equivalents, ¥1,250 

million in trade notes and accounts receivable, and ¥4,493 million in 

inventories. Property, plant, and equipment decreased by ¥146 million 
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to ¥33,219 million. The decrease is mainly attributable to depreciation 

and amortization of production facilities. Depreciation and amortiza-

tion rose 11.7% from the previous year to ¥3,025 million. 

 Capital expenditures were ¥5,370 million, ¥2,529 higher than the 

previous year. The principal expenditures were for the upgrading and 

improvement of production facilities. 

 Total liabilities increased by ¥4,364 million, or 14.3%, from the end 

of the previous year to ¥34,978 million. Principal factors were an in-

crease of ¥3,512 million in trade notes and accounts payable, an in-

crease of ¥1,570 million in bank debt, a decrease of ¥2,003 million in 

other accounts payable, and an increase of ¥1,072 million in income 

taxes payable. 

 Interest bearing debt increased from the end of the previous period 

by ¥1,222 million, or 9.0%, to ¥14,773 million.

 Net assets were ¥46,258 million, an increase of ¥4,552 million, or 

10.9%, from the end of the previous year. The equity ratio decreased 

by 0.9 percentage points to 54.5%

CASH FLOWS

■ Cash flows from operating activities

Cash provided by operating activities increased by ¥4,738 million from 

the previous year to ¥7,907 million. Principal items were ¥8,372 million 

in income before income taxes and minority Interests, ¥3,025 million in 

depreciation and amortization, an increase of ¥4,493 million in inven-

tories, an increase of ¥1,250 million in trade notes and accounts pay-

able, an increase of ¥3,555 million in trade notes and accounts payable, 

and ¥2,503 million in income taxes paid.

■ Cash flows from investing activities

Cash used in investing activities increased by ¥2,292 million from the 

previous year to ¥5,329 million, consisting mainly of payments for pur-

chase of property, plant and equipment.

■ Cash flows from financing activities

Cash provided by financing activities decreased by ¥679 million from 
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the previous year to ¥348 million. The principal item was proceeds 

from long-term debt.

  As a result, cash and cash equivalents at end of year increased by 

¥2,926 million from the previous fiscal year to ¥9,474 million.

DIVIDEND POLICY 

The Company considers the distribution of profits to shareholders its 

most important management priority and has a basic policy of continu-

ing to pay dividends in line with business performance while maintain-

ing the internal reserves necessary for future business development and 

reinforcement of the financial structure.

 For the year under review, the Company stressed shareholder re-

turns and paid an annual dividend of ¥70 per share of common stock, 

consisting of an interim dividend of ¥30 per share and a year-end divi-

dend of ¥40. 

OUTLOOK FOR FISCAL 2010

Although the Japanese economy is expected to follow a gradual recov-

ery path due to factors including stimulus measures incorporated in the 

fiscal 2010 budget and improvement in business performance fueled 

by an increase in overseas demand, recovery in individual consumption 

is likely to take considerable time owing to uncertainty surrounding 

the employment situation and declining incomes. In the ethical drugs 

industry, although drug prices were lowered by an industry average of 

6.3% in April of this year, further expansion of the generics market is 

expected thanks to reinforcement of measures to promote the use of 

generic drugs.

 The Sawai Group will make further inroads in developing new mar-

kets and strive to augment business performance by implementing the 

measures set forth in the M1 TRUST medium-term business year in the 

second year of the plan. 

 We forecast net sales of ¥62,000 million, operating income of 

¥10,000 million, and net income of ¥5,800 million in fiscal 2010.
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Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars (Note 1)

ASSETS 2010 2009 2010

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) ¥    9,474 ¥    6,548 $  101,827

Trade notes and accounts receivable (Note 3) 18,540 17,290 199,269

Allowance for doubtful receivables (10)    (26)    (107)

28,004 23,812   300,989

Inventories (Note 4) 18,081 13,588 194,336

Deferred income taxes (Note 9)  1,787 1,322 19,207

Other current assets     144 232 1,547

Total current assets    48,016 38,954 516,079

Property, Plant and Equipment :

Land 5,140 5,140 55,245

Buildings and structures 28,532 28,212 306,664

Machinery and equipment 17,861 16,894 191,971

Leased assets (Note 2) 38 34 409

Construction in progress 570 31 6,126

Other 4,422 3,825 47,528

56,563 54,136 607,943

Accumulated depreciation (24,778)  (22,314) (266,316)

Net property, plant and equipment 31,785   31,822 341,627

Intangible Assets 478 598 5,138

Investments and Other Assets: 

Investment securities (Notes 3, 5) 658 544 7,072

Long-term receivables 55 99 591

Deferred income taxes (Note 9) — 32 —

Long-term deposits 42 71 451

Other investments and long-term receivables 248 229 2,666

    1,003 975 10,780

Allowance for doubtful receivables     (46) (29) (494)

Net investments and other assets 957 946 10,286

 ¥  81,236 ¥  72,320 $  873,130

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars (Note 1)

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 2010 2009 2010

Current Liabilities:

Bank debt (Notes 3, 6) ¥   4,100 ¥   2,530 $   44,067

Current portion of long-term debt (Notes 3, 6) 2,503 2,550   26,902

Current portion of lease obligations (Note 2) 12 11 129

Trade notes and accounts payable (Note 3) 10,040 6,528 107,911

Other accounts payable (Note 3) 4,073 6,076 43,777

Accrued bonuses to employees 1,081 872 11,619

Accrued bonuses to directors and corporate auditors 83 48 892

Income taxes payable (Note 3) 2,659 1,587    28,579

Reserve for sales returns 102 128 1,096

Reserve for sales rebates 509 345    5,471

Other current liabilities 279 236    2,999

Total current liabilities 25,441 20,911   273,442

Long-Term Liabilities:

Long-term debt (Notes 3, 6) 8,172 8,471 87,833

Long-term lease obligations (Note 2) 11 20 118

Employees’ retirement benefits (Note 7) 92 116 989

Directors’ and corporate auditors’ retirement benefits 271 207 2,913

Deferred tax liabilities (Note 9) 186 139 1,999

Negative goodwill 26 39 279

Other long-term liabilities 779 711 8,373

Total long-term liabilities 9,537 9,703 102,504

Net Assets (Note 8) :

Shareholders’ Equity:

Common stock

Authorized 38,800,000 shares

Issued and outstanding

15,702,000 shares in 2010 and 2009 11,502 11,502 123,624

Capital surplus 11,825 11,825 127,096

Retained earnings 20,763 16,644 223,162

Treasury stock 662 shares in 2010

  549 shares in 2009 (3) (2) (32)

Valuation and translation adjustments

Net unrealized holding gains on securities 154 87 1,655

Subscription rights to shares 202 82 2,171

Minority Interests 1,815 1,568 19,508

Net assets 46,258 41,706 497,184

¥ 81,236 ¥ 72,320 $ 873,130
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Sawai Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended March 31, 2010 and 2009

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars (Note 1)

2010 2009 2010

Net Sales ¥ 50,070 ¥ 44,284 $ 538,155

Cost of Sales 26,275 25,156 282,405

Gross Profit 23,795 19,128 255,750

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses 15,276 14,460 164,187

Operating Income 8,519 4,668 91,563

Other Income (Expenses):

Interest and dividend income 14 17 150

Interest expense (211) (164) (2,268)

Subsidy income 38 24 408

Compensation income 59 25 634

Expenses for loan commitment agreements (32) (98) (344)

Subsidy expense (12) — (129)

Gain on sale of fixed assets — 1 —

Loss on disposal of buildings and structures (35) (77) (376)

Loss on sale of fixed assets, net — (4) —

Loss on devaluation of investments in securities — (78) —

Reversal of allowance for doubtful receivables 17 9 183

Amortization of negative goodwill 13 12 140

Provision of allowance for doubtful accounts of golf club membership — (2) —

Other, net 2 (13) 22

(147) (348) (1,580)

Income Before Income Taxes And Minority Interests 8,372 4,320 89,983

Provision for Income Taxes:

Current 3,571 2,211 38,381

Deferred (432) (611) (4,643)

Minority Interests 251 281 2,698

Net Income ¥   4,982 ¥   2,439 $   53,547

Per Share of Common Stock: Yen U.S. dollars (Note 1)

Net income – basic ¥ 317.32 ¥ 155.32 $       3.41

Net income – diluted 316.86 — 3.41

Dividends   70.00 55.00 0.75

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Sawai Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
March 31, 2010 and 2009

Millions of yen

Shareholders’ equity
Valuation and translation 

adjustments Subscription
rights to
shares

Minority 
interests

 Total 
net assetsCommon 

stock
Capital 
surplus

Retained 
earnings

Treasury 
stock

Total
shareholders’

equity

Net unrealized
holding gains
on securities

Total valuation
and translation

adjustments

Balance at March 31, 2008 ¥11,502 ¥11,825 ¥15,069 ¥(1) ¥38,395 ¥ 234 ¥ 234 — ¥1,576 ¥40,205 

Cash dividends

Cash dividends (864) (864) (864)

Net income 2,439 2,439 2,439 

Net increase in treasury stock (1) (1) (1)

Net changes of items other than 
shareholders’ equity

(147) (147) 82 (8) (73)

Total changes of items during the period — — 1,575 (1) 1,574 (147) (147) 82 (8) 1,501 

Balance at March 31, 2009 ¥11,502 ¥11,825 ¥16,644 ¥(2) ¥39,969 ¥   87 ¥   87 ¥82 ¥1,568 ¥41,706 

Cash dividends

Cash dividends (863) (863) (863)

Net income 4,982 4,982 4,982 

Net increase in treasury stock (1) (1) (1)

Net changes of items other than 
shareholders’ equity

67 67 120 247 434 

Total changes of items during the period — — 4,119 (1) 4,118 67 67 120 247 4,552 

Balance at March 31, 2010 (Note 7) ¥11,502 ¥11,825 ¥20,763 ¥(3) ¥44,087 ¥ 154 ¥ 154 ¥202 ¥1,815 ¥46,258 

Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 1)

Shareholders’ equity
Valuation and translation 

adjustments Subscription
rights to
shares

Minority 
interests

 Total 
net assetsCommon 

stock
Capital 
surplus

Retained 
earnings

Treasury 
stock

Total
shareholders’

equity

Net unrealized
holding gains
on securities

Total valuation
and translation

adjustments

Balance at March 31, 2009 $123,624 $127,096 $178,891 $(21) $429,590 $   935 $   935 $   881 $16,853 $448,259 

Changes of items during the year

Cash dividends (9,276) (9,276) (9,276)

Net income for the year 53,547 53,547 53,547 

Acquisition of treasury stock (11) (11) (11)

Net changes of items other than 
shareholders’ equity

720 720 1,290 2,655 4,665 

Total increase/decrease during the year — — 44,271 (11) 44,260 720 720 1,290 2,655 48,925 

Balance at March 31, 2010 (Note 7) $123,624 $127,096 $223,162 $(32) $473,850 $1,655 $1,655 $2,171 $19,508 $497,184 

Note: These are items concerning the appropriation of earnings are resolved at the general shareholders meeting held on June 2010 and 2009.
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Sawai Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended March 31, 2010 and 2009

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars (Note 1)

2010 2009 2010

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Income before income taxes and minority interests

Adjustments to reconcile income before income taxes to 
net cash provided by operating activities:

¥  8,372 ¥  4,320 $  89,983 

Depreciation and amortization 3,025 2,709 32,513
Amortization of negative goodwill (13) (12) (140)
Increase in reserve for sales rebates 165 81 1,773
Increase (decrease) in allowance for doubtful receivables 3 (21) 32
Increase in accrued bonuses to employees 209 58 2,246
Increase in accrued bonuses to directors and corporate auditors 35 3 376
Decrease in reserve for loss on sales returns (26) (26) (279)
Decrease in employees’ retirement benefits (24) (53) (258)

Increase (decrease) in retirement benefits to directors and 
corporate auditors

64 (181) 688

Interest and dividend income (14) (17) (150)
Interest expense 211 164 2,268
Loss on devaluation of investments in securities — 78 —
Loss on disposal of buildings and structures 31 77 333
Increase in trade notes and accounts receivable (1,250) (1,978) (13,435)
Increase in inventories (4,493) (88) (48,291)
Increase (decrease) in trade notes and accounts payable 3,555 (449) 38,209
Decrease in long-term prepaid expenses 28 20 301
Increase (decrease) in other accounts payable 428 (362) 4,600
Other 299 454 3,214

Sub total 10,605 4,777 113,983
Interest and dividends received 14 17 150
Interest paid (209) (169) (2,246)
Income taxes paid (2,503) (1,456) (26,902)

Net cash provided by operating activities 7,907 3,169 84,985
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Payments for purchase of securities — (5) —
Proceeds from sale of securities — 4 —
Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment (5,214) (2,721) (56,040)
Payments for purchase of intangible assets (156) (120) (1,677)
Payments for purchase of investment securities — (50) —
Payments of long-term debts — (70) —
Proceeds from collection of long-term debts 44 188 473
Payment for additional acquisition of subsidiary’s securities (3) (264) (32)
Other 0 1 0

Net cash used in investing activities (5,329) (3,037) (52,276)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Net increase in bank debt 1,570 530 16,874
Proceeds from long-term debts 2,500 3,550 26,870
Repayment of long-term debts (2,847) (2,163) (30,600)
Payments for purchase of treasury stock (0) (1) (0)
Cash dividends paid (864) (864) (9,286)
Cash dividends paid to minority shareholders — (17) —
Other (11) (8) (118)

Net cash provided by financing activities 348 1,027 3,740
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,926 1,159 31,449
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 6,548 5,389 70,378
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ¥  9,474 ¥  6,548 $101,827 

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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SAWAI PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LTD. (the “Company”) and its consolidated subsidiaries (the “Companies”) maintain 

their official accounting records in Japanese yen, in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Financial Instru-

ments and Exchange Law and its related accounting regulations and in conformity with accounting principles gener-

ally accepted in Japan (“Japanese GAAP”), which are different in certain respects as to application and disclosure 

requirements required under International Financial Reporting Standards.

 The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been restructured and translated into English from the 

consolidated financial statements of the Companies prepared in accordance with Japanese GAAP and filed with the 

appropriate Local Finance Bureau of the Ministry of Finance as required by the Financial Instruments and Exchange 

Law. Some supplementary information included in the statutory Japanese language consolidated financial statements, 

but not required for fair presentation, is not presented in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

 The translation of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts are included solely for the convenience of 

readers outside Japan, using the prevailing exchange rate at March 31, 2010, which was approximately ¥93.04 to 

U.S.$1.00. The translations should not be construed as representations that the Japanese yen amounts have been, 

could have been, or could in the future be converted into U.S. dollars at this or any other rate of exchange.

(A) CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries, MEDISA SHINYAKU 

INC. and KAKEN SHOYAKU CO., LTD., which meet the control requirements for consolidation. All significant inter-

company transactions and accounts have been eliminated in the consolidation. In the elimination of investments 

in subsidiaries, the assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries are valued using the fair value at the time the Company 

acquired control of the respective subsidiaries. 

 MEDISA SHINYAKU INC. allocated a portion of its shares, representing 35 percent of the total shares outstanding 

of the subsidiary, to a third party in January 2006. The Company purchased 5 percent of the shares from the third 

party during the year ended March 31, 2009, resulting in the ratio of capital contribution of the third party decreas-

ing to 30 percent, with the Company’s holding increasing to 70 percent of the outstanding shares of the subsidiary 

at March 31, 2009.

 KAKEN SHOYAKU CO., LTD. became a subsidiary, with a majority of its shares owned by the Company, in the 

latter half of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. Therefore, the accounts of this subsidiary were included in the 

scope of consolidation from the latter half of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007.

 The Company has no affiliates meeting the significant influence requirement for the application of equity meth-

od accounting required for such investments.

(B) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated balance sheets include cash on hand, readily available deposits and 

deposits with a maturity of three months or less. 

(C) ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL RECEIVABLES

The allowance for doubtful receivables is provided in amounts sufficient to cover possible losses on collection. The 

allowance is determined by adding individually estimated uncollectable amounts to an amount computed based on 

the actual ratio of historic bad debts.

(D) INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The Company classifies securities into the following categories: (1) securities held for trading purposes (“trading 

securities”), (2) debt securities intended to be held to maturity (“held-to-maturity debt securities”), (3) equity secu-

rities issued by subsidiaries and affiliated companies, and (4) all other securities that are not classified in any of the 

above categories (“available-for-sale securities”).

 The Company does not have any trading securities, held-to-maturity debt securities or equity securities in un-

consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates. Available-for-sale securities with available fair market values are stated at 

fair market value. Unrealized gains and losses on these securities are reported, net of applicable income taxes, as a 

separate component of net assets.  Realized gains and losses on the sale of such securities are computed using mov-

ing average cost.

Sawai Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended March 31, 2010 and 2009
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 Securities with no available fair market value are stated at moving average cost. If the fair market value of an 

individual security declines to a level below historical cost and is judged to be material and other than temporary; 

the carrying value of the individual security is written down.

(E) INVENTORIES

Prior to April 1, 2008, inventories were stated at weighted moving average cost, except for supplies, which are stated 

at average cost.

 For the year ended March 31, 2009, the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries adopted the new account-

ing standard for Measurement of Inventories (“ASBJ Statement No.9” issued on July 5, 2006). The new accounting 

standard requires that inventories held for sale in the ordinary course of business be valued at the lower of cost or 

net realizable value.

 As a result of this change, operating income decreased by ¥1,547 million and income before income taxes de-

creased by ¥1,076 million for the year ended March 31, 2009 compared with the corresponding amounts which 

would have been recorded under the previous method. 

(F) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (EXCLUDING LEASES) 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is mainly calculated using the straight-line method 

over estimated useful life of the asset. 

 The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries have extended the useful life of machinery and equipment as 

per revisions on or after April 1, 2008 to the Japanese Corporate Tax Law. As a result of this change, gross profit 

increased by ¥121 million, operating income and ordinary income and income before income taxes both increased 

by ¥124 million for the year ended March 31, 2009 compared with the corresponding amounts which would have 

been recorded under the previous method. 

 Expenditures for significant renewals and betterments are capitalized, while expenditures for normal repairs and 

maintenance are expensed as incurred.

(G) INTANGIBLE ASSETS (EXCLUDING LEASES)

The Company includes software costs in intangible assets and depreciates them using the straight-line method over 

the estimated useful life of five years.

(H) LEASES

For lease transactions not involving the transfer of ownership, lease assets are depreciated over their useful life using 

the straight-line method until the net residual value reaches zero.

 For the year ended March 31, 2009, the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries adopted the new accounting 

standard for Lease Transactions (“ASBJ Statement No.13” issued on March 30,2007), and the Guidance on Account-

ing Standard for Lease Transactions (“ASBJ Guidance No. 16” issued on March 30,2007) except for certain immate-

rial or short-term finance leases, which are accounted for as operating leases. As a result of this change, the impact 

on operating income, income before income taxes and minority interests was immaterial for the year ended March 

31, 2009 compared with the corresponding which would have been recorded under the previous method. 

 Finance leases commencing prior to April 2008, which do not transfer ownership or which do not have bargain 

purchase option provisions were accounted for in the same manner as operating leases in accordance with Japa-

nese GAAP.

(I) ACCRUED BONUSES TO EMPLOYEES

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries accrue amounts for employees’ bonuses based on estimated amounts 

to be paid in the subsequent period.

(J) ACCRUED BONUSES TO DIRECTORS AND CORPORATE AUDITORS

Bonuses to directors and corporate auditors, which are subject to approval at the general meeting of shareholders, 

are accounted for as an appropriation of retained earnings.

(K) RESERVE FOR SALES RETURNS

The reserve for sales returns provides for estimated future loses expected to be incurred from the return of products. 
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(L) RESERVE FOR SALES REBATES

The reserve for sales rebates provides for estimated future sales rebates by multiplying accounts receivable by the 

estimated rebate rates.

(M) PENSION AND OTHER POST RETIREMENTS OBLIGATIONS

(i) Employees

The Company and its subsidiary MEDISA SHINYAKU INC. revised its previous tax qualified pension plan and imple-

mented a new defined contribution plan on October 1, 2005. 

 KAKEN SHOYAKU CO., LTD. maintains a lump-sum indemnity plan, which is a non-contributory defined benefit 

pension plan. Retirement benefits for employees are provided based on the company’s provisions.

(ii) Directors and Corporate Auditors

The liability for directors and corporate auditors’ retirement benefits is provided based on the Company’s internally 

developed criteria.

(N) RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Research and development expenses for the improvement of existing products and the development of new products, 

including basic research and fundamental development costs, are expensed in the period incurred and amounted to 

¥3,593 million ($38,618 thousand) and ¥3,409 million for the years ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

(O) INCOME TAXES

Income taxes comprise corporation tax, prefectural and municipal in-habitants taxes and enterprise tax. The provi-

sion for income taxes is based on income for financial statement purposes.  The tax effects of loss carry-forwards 

and temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for tax and financial reporting are 

recognized as deferred income taxes.

(P) NET INCOME PER SHARE

Computations of basic net income per share of common stock are based on the weighted average number of com-

mon stock outstanding during each year.  

 Calculations of diluted net income per share of common stock are based on the weighted average number of 

shares outstanding, after assuming the exercise of subscription rights to shares.

 Cash dividends per share presented in the accompanying consolidated statements of income, are dividends ap-

plicable to the respective years, including dividends to be paid, after the end of the year.

(Q) CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

In preparing the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash on hand, readily-available deposits and short-term 

highly liquid investments with maturities not exceeding three months at the time of purchase are considered to be 

cash and cash equivalents.

(R) RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2010 presentation. 

Effective from the fiscal year ended March 31, 2010, the Company adopted the revised Accounting Standard, “Ac-

counting Standard for Financial Instruments” (Accounting Standards Board of Japan (“ASBJ”) Statement No. 10 

revised on March 10, 2008) and the “Guidance on Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments” (ASBJ Guid-

ance No.19 revised on March 10, 2008).  Information on financial instruments for the year ended March 31, 2010 

required pursuant to the revised accounting standards is as follows.

(A) QUALITATIVE INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(1) Policies for using financial instruments

The Companies policy for the cash management; is mainly to hold short-term deposits at banks with the funding of 

cash mainly sourced from bank loans.
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(2) Details of financial instruments used and the exposures to risks 

 Trade notes and accounts receivable are exposed to the credit risk of our customers.  The Companies have manage-

ment structures in place, to check the term and balance outstanding for every customer.

  Investment securities are exposed to the risk of market price fluctuations. The Companies policies for investment 

securities, are to mainly invest in securities of counter-parties with which the Companies conduct business. The 

Companies regularly report the investment securities held, to the management board.

 Trade notes and accounts payable are due within 1-year.

 Short-term bank debts, mainly for the purpose of providing operating funds, are based on market price rates and 

Long-term bank debts (as a rule within 7-year), mainly due to operating funds and capital investment funds, which 

are based on fixed rates in order to minimize the risk of changing rates. 

(3) Supplemental information on fair values

 The Companies used market fair values of Financial Instruments but partially used rational estimations in case of no 

market fair values and in those estimations there are some variation factors.

(B) FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Book values and fair values of the financial instruments on the consolidated balance sheet at March 31, 2010 are 

the following.
Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars

Book value Fair value Difference Book value Fair value Difference

Cash and cash equivalents 9,474 9,474 — 101,827 101,827 —

Trade notes and accounts receivable 18,540 18,540 — 199,269 199,269 —

Investment securities; other securities 568 568 — 6,105 6,105 —

Total assets ¥28,582 ¥28,582 ¥— $307,201 $307,201 $   —

Trade notes and accounts payable 10,040 10,040 — 107,911 107,911 —

Bank debt and 
current portion of long-term debt

6,603 6,604 1 70,969 70,980 11

Other accounts payable 4,073 4,073 — 43,777 43,777 —

Income taxes payable 2,659 2,659 — 28,579 28,579 —

Long-term debt 8,172 8,211 39 87,833 88,252 419

Total liabilities ¥31,547 ¥31,587 ¥40 $339,069 $339,499 $430

(1) For certain financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, notes and accounts receivable and payable, 

bank debt, accrued income taxes payable and other current liabilities, Their fair value is approximately equal to the 

book value, due to short period until maturity of the respective items. 

(2) For marketable securities, fair value is determined based on observable quoted market prices. 

(3) For long-term debt including the current portion of long-term debt, fair value is determined using the estimated 

discounted values of future cash flows, for the same or similar, types of instruments. 

(4) Investment securities for non-listed companies, with aggregate book values of 86 million yen ($924 thousand) 

at March 31, 2010, have not been included in “Investment securities; other securities” as it is not possible to reason-

ably or accurately estimate the fair values of these investments, based on estimated future cash flows or quoted 

market prices.

Inventories at March 31, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

2010 2009 2010

Finished goods and merchandise ¥  9,998 ¥  6,704 $107,459

Work-in-process 3,799 3,033 40,832

Raw materials and supplies 4,284 3,851 46,045

Total ¥18,081 ¥13,588 $194,336
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(a) The following tables summarize acquisition costs and fair market values of available-for-sale securities with avail-

able fair values as of March 31, 2010 and 2009.

(1) Securities with fair market values exceeding acquisition costs:

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars

March 31, 2010:
Acquisition

cost
Book value Difference

Acquisition
cost

Book value Difference

Equity securities ¥297 ¥568 ¥271 $3,192 $6,105 $2,913

Millions of yen

March 31, 2009:
Acquisition

cost
Book value Difference

Equity securities ¥174 ¥333 ¥159

(2) Securities with fair market values not exceeding acquisition costs:

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars

March 31, 2010:
Acquisition

cost
Book value Difference

Acquisition
cost

Book value Difference

Equity securities ¥  — ¥  — ¥  — $      — $      — $      —

Millions of yen

March 31, 2009:
Acquisition

cost
Book value Difference

Equity securities ¥  77 ¥  75 ¥   (2)

(b) Total sales of available-for-sale securities in the year ended March 31, 2010 amounted to ¥0 million, and the 

related losses amounted to ¥0 million. Total sales of available-for-sale securities in the year ended March 31, 2009 

amounted to ¥4 million, and the related losses amounted to ¥0 million.

(c) Acquisition cost of securities with no available fair values as of March 31, 2010, are as follows:

  Unlisted equity securities: ¥86 million ($924 thousand). 

 Acquisition cost of securities with no available fair values as of March 31, 2009, are as follows:

  Unlisted equity securities: ¥136 million. 

Short-term debt consisted mainly of unsecured bank loans with weighted average interest rates of 0.588% per 

annum at March 31, 2010 and 0.777% per annum at March 31, 2009.

Long-term debt at March 31, 2010 consisted of the following:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

Loans from banks and other public corporations, due 2010 – 2017, 
interest 0.91% – 1.78%
 Secured ¥     695 $    7,470

 Unsecured 9,980 107,265

10,675 114,735

Current portion of long-term debt 2,503 26,902

¥  8,172 $  87,833

5

INVESTMENT 

SECURITIES

6

SHORT-TERM DEBT 

AND 

LONG-TERM DEBT

33



Long-term debt at March 31, 2009 consisted of the following:
Millions of yen

Loans from banks and other public corporations, due 2009 – 2016, 
interest 0.54% – 2.0%
Secured ¥     915

Unsecured 10,106

11,021

Current portion of long-term debt 2,550

¥  8,471

The aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt outstanding at March 31, 2010 are as follows:

March 31, Millions of yen
Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

2011 ¥  2,503 $  26,902

2012 2,152 23,130

2013 2,189 23,527

2014 1,951 20,969

2015 970 10,426

2016-2017 910 9,781

Total ¥10,675 $114,735

At March 31, 2010, assets pledged as collateral for secured long-term debt, including current portions, are as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 
U.S. dollars

Property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation ¥1,005 $10,802

At March 31, 2008, assets pledged as collateral for secured long-term debt, including current portions, are as follows:
Millions of yen

Property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation ¥3,989

The Company and its subsidiary, MEDISA SHINYAKU INC., revised their tax qualified pension plan and implemented 

a new defined contribution plan on October 1, 2005. 

 KAKEN SHOYAKU CO., LTD., the Company’s subsidiary, maintains a lump-sum indemnity plan, which is a non-

contributory defined benefit pension plan and uses the simplified method to determine pension benefit obligations.

The liability for employees’ pension benefits at March 31, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

2010 2009 2010

Projected retirement benefit obligation ¥92 ¥116 $989

Liability for retirement benefits ¥92 ¥116 $989

Retirement benefit expenses for the years ended March 31, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

2010 2009 2010

Service cost ¥  15 ¥  13 $   161

Payment of contribution to defined contribution pension plan 378 373 4,063

Retirement benefit expenses ¥393 ¥386 $4,224

Retirement expenses of KAKEN SHOYAKU CO., LTD., which has adopted the simplified method to determine benefit 

obligations are included in both service cost and amortization of the transition obligation.
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Under Japanese laws and regulations, the entire amount paid for new shares is required to be designated as common 

stock. However, a company may, by a resolution of the Board of Directors. designate an amount not exceeding one-

half of the price of the new shares as additional paid-in capital, which is included in capital surplus.

 Under Japanese Corporate Law (“the Law”), in cases where a dividend distribution of surplus is made, the lesser of 

an amount equal to 10% of the dividend or the excess, if any, of 25% of common stock over the total of additional 

paid-in-capital and legal earnings reserve must be set aside as additional paid-in-capital or a legal earnings reserve. 

Legal earnings reserves are included in retained earnings in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

 Additional paid-in capital and legal earnings reserves may not be distributed as dividends. Under the Law, all ad-

ditional paid-in-capital and all legal earnings reserves may, by resolution of the shareholders, be transferred to other 

capital surplus and retained earnings, respectively, which are potentially available for distribution as dividends.

 On June 24, 2010, the Company’s shareholders approved the payment of year-end cash dividends of ¥40 

($0.43) per share, totaling ¥628 million ($6,750 thousand) paid to the Company’s shareholders of record as of 

March 31, 2010.

The Company is subject to a number of taxes based on income, which, in the aggregate, indicate a statutory income 

tax rate in Japan of approximately 40.87% for the years ended March 31, 2010 and 2009.  

Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities at March 31, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

2010 2009 2010

Deferred tax assets:

Unrealized gains on land ¥      29 ¥     29 $      312

Retirement benefits for directors and corporate auditors 111 84 1,193

Unrealized gains on inventories 366 187 3,934

Accrued bonuses to employees 433 347 4,654

Reserve for sales rebates 208 141 2,236

Amount in excess of depreciation and amortization 119 131 1,279

Loss due to impairment of fixed assets 205 205 2,203

Loss on disposal of buildings and structures 147 147 1,580

Enterprise taxes 214 139 2,300

Loss on valuation of inventories 343 439 3,687

Other 373 208 4,008

Sub total deferred tax assets 2,548 2,057 27,386

Less valuation allowance (562) (495) (6,040)

Total deferred tax assets 1,986 1,562 21,346

Deferred tax liabilities:

Reserve for deferred gains on sales of fixed assets (136) (136) (1,462)

Reserve for special depreciation — (8) —

Net unrealized holding gains on securities (111) (65) (1,193)

Unrealized gain on revaluation of land (138) (138) (1,483)

Other (0) (0) (0)

Total deferred tax liabilities (385) (347) (4,138)

Net deferred tax assets ¥1,601 ¥1,215 $17,208

The following table summarizes the significant differences between the statutory income tax rate and the effective 

income tax rate for financial statement purposes for the year ended March 31, 2010 and 2009.

2010 2009

Statutory income tax rate 40.87% 40.87%

Special tax credits (4.23) (5.81)

Permanently nondeductible expenses 0.23 1.79

Additions and reductions of valuation allowance (0.87) (0.59)

Other 0.25 0.78

Effective income tax rate  37.50%  37.04%
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As discussed in Note 2, finance leases that commended prior to April 1, 2008 which do not transfer ownership or 

which do not have bargain purchase option provisions were accounted for in the same manner as operating leases 

are accounted for as operating leases.

 Assumed amounts of acquisition cost and accumulated depreciation at March 31, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

(A) FINANCE LEASES - LESSEE

At March 31, 2010 and 2009, lease obligations for machinery and equipment and other assets under non-capital 

finance leases are as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

2010 2009 2010

Lease obligations, including finance charges ¥582 ¥650 $6,255

Lease obligations under non-capital finance leases, including finance charges, remaining at March 31, 2010 and 2009 

are as follows: 

Millions of yen
Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

2010 2009 2010

Payments due within one year ¥  87 ¥130 $   935

Payments due after one year 47 94 505

Total ¥134 ¥224 $1,440

Leases payments under such leases for the years ended March 31, 2010 and 2009 are ¥162 million ($1,741 thou-

sand) and ¥183 million, respectively.

(B) OPERATING LEASES - LESSEE

Lease obligations under operating leases remaining at March 31, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 
U.S. dollars 

2010 2009 2010

Payments due within one year ¥22 ¥22 $236

Payments due after one year 33 53 355

Total ¥55 ¥75 $591

The Companies operate primarily in the pharmaceutical supplies industry in Japan.  Accordingly, there is no presenta-

tion of information by business segment.
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Stock option expenses in the amounts of ¥119 million ($1,279 thousand) and ¥83 million have been accounted 

for as “Selling, general and administrative expenses” on the consolidated statements of income for the year ended 

March 31, 2010 and 2009.

The details related to the stock option expenses at March 31, 2010 are as follows:

Fiscal year 2009 Stock options

Position and number of grantee Directors of the Company: 9
Corporate auditors: 1
Employees: 646
Subsidiary Employees: 38 

Type and number of shares Common stock of Company: 192,300 shares

Date of grant August 11, 2008 

Settlement of rights After providing service for the period

Period of providing service for stock option For 2 years
(From August 11, 2008 to August 11, 2010)

Exercise period of rights For 5 years from grant date
(From August 12, 2010 to August 11, 2015)

Number of shares of stock options at March 31, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:
Number of shares

2010 2009

Before Settlement of rights

Beginning of year — —

Granted 195,000 195,700

Expired 2,700    700

Settled — —

End of year 192,300 195,000

After Settlement of rights

Beginning of year — —

Settled — —

Exercised — —

Expired — —

End of year — —

Information per share price at March 31, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

Yen U.S. dollars 

2010 2009 2010

Exercise price ¥4,650 ¥4,650 $49.98

Fair value at grant date 1,257 1,257 13.51

Assumptions used in estimation of the fair value of stock options above are as follows:

Fiscal year 2010 Stock options

Method of estimation Black-Scholes model

Volatility *1 34.8%

Expected remaining period *2 4 years and 6 months

Expected dividend *3 ¥55 ($0.59)

Risk-free interest rate *4 1.00%

*1  Rate of variability, which is calculated based on the monthly closing prices of common stock of the Company for 4 years and 6 months 
from February 2004 to August 2008 for the 2010 stock options, respectively.

*2 Mid-term point between date of grant and estimated exercisable period.
*3 Actual dividend per share for the year ended March 31, 2008 for the stock options.
*4 Interest rate for a government bond with similar period as option vesting period of stock options.
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